

MECKLENBURG COUNTY CDBG ENTITLEMENT PROGRAM

CDBG Entitlement Program 2018 Annual Action Plan

Table of Contents

Executive Summary	2
AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b)	2
PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b)	5
AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l)	6
AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c)	12
Expected Resources	16
AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2)	16
Annual Goals and Objectives	18
AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d)	21
AP-38 Project Summary	23
AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f)	27
AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing -91.420, 91.220(j)	29
AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k)	30
Program Specific Requirements	33

The 2018 Action Plan is presented to you in a format that is prescribed by HUD. Data and narrative are entered into a federal database system called the Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) and the Action Plan report is then downloaded into a Word format. The Action Plan template in IDIS has a series of prescribed questions that align with the CDBG Consolidated Plan program regulations. The report you are reviewing is the result of that data entry process and is the prescribed and recommended format by HUD. If you have any questions about this format, please don't hesitate to contact Timmothy Tibbs at Timmothy.Tibbs@mecklenburgcountync.gov. Thank you for your interest and time spent reviewing this report.

Prepared for

Mecklenburg County

Prepared by

Centralina Council of Governments 9815 David Taylor Drive Charlotte, NC 28262 www.centralina.org cedc@centralina.org



Executive Summary

AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b)

1. Introduction

Mecklenburg County's Annual Action Plan provides a narrative description of the projects and activities that are expected to be implemented and funded with entitlement funding that Mecklenburg County will receive from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the 2018 Program Year (Mecklenburg County's FY 2018-2019). As an entitlement community, Mecklenburg County receives an annual share of federal Community Development Block Grant funds. In order to receive its CDBG entitlement funding, the County must submit an Annual Action Plan to HUD. The 2018 Annual Action Plan includes the funding application for CDBG funds in the amount of \$808,974, as well as information on the proposed projects for the 2018 planning year.

The 2018 Annual Action Plan (2018 AAP) informs HUD of Mecklenburg County's intended use of federal and non-federal resources to meet the needs of the community. In Mecklenburg County's case, the primary funding source is HUD's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). The funds are intended to provide low and moderate-income households with viable communities, including decent housing, a suitable living environment, and expanded economic opportunities. Eligible activities include community facilities and improvements, sustaining or creating affordable housing, public services, economic development, planning, and administration.

The 2018 AAP strives to reflect the County's continued efforts and commitment to address affordable housing issues, public facility, and infrastructure improvements for low to moderate income persons. Additionally, Mecklenburg County will continue to undertake specific actions in order to address the national objectives outlined by HUD by providing for increased activity involving resident initiatives, evaluation and reduction of lead-based paint hazards, increased employment opportunities, the further development of community based institutional facilities and the enhancement of coordination between public and private housing and human service agencies. All activities and funding priorities included in Mecklenburg County's Annual Action Plan will address three statutory goals set by HUD:

- Provide Decent Housing
- Provide A Suitable Living Environment
- Provide Expanded Economic Opportunities

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

The goals and outcomes identified in this Action Plan are taken from the Consolidated Plan's Strategic Plan, which describes how federal funds and other resources will be deployed and what other actions will be taken to address community development and affordable housing needs over the next five years. This year, the following priority needs are being addressed through projects to be funded:

- Public Facility Investments and Infrastructure Improvements.
- Rehabilitation of existing housing stock
- Increasing affordable housing units
- Public services

3. Evaluation of past performance

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or projects.

Mecklenburg County values CDBG funding and the positive impacts these funds have on low to moderate income (LMI) area residents with community development needs. This annual funding source provides for expanded services that would otherwise not be available.

The County's 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan met HUD's requirements to receive funding through the five-year planning period. Priorities were developed to be broad in nature to allow for a variety of projects to be funded.

Since Mecklenburg County began receiving CDBG funding in 2010, the priorities have remained consistent. Program performance has allowed the County to fund a variety of programs that target persons and families in need within the program area. County funded CDBG projects have provided public services for childcare, social services, installation of much needed public water lines, construction of roadways providing neighborhood access, housing rehabilitation and property acquisition for construction of new affordable housing.

For more detailed information on past performance and detailed outcomes for past projects the 2016 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report is available upon request.

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process

Encouraging citizen participation and consulting with other public and private agencies are important parts of the planning process. The County used several methods to solicit citizen participation and to consult with other public and private entities, including public notices, public meetings, public hearings, and other outreach efforts. The 2018 AAP was a collaborative effort of county citizens, non-profit organizations, faith-based organizations, county staff as well as staff members from participating

Mecklenburg County 2018 Annual Action Plan

municipal jurisdictions. In December 2017 notices were sent to all municipalities in Mecklenburg County notifying them of the upcoming program and requesting their participation in the process. Three meetings, two public hearings, and a citizen participation forum were held in between January 2018 and April 2018 to inform members of the community and the County's partners about the Annual Action Plan planning process, the timeline for completion, and the 30-day comment period.

A copy of the County's Citizen Participation Plan can be obtained upon request by contacting Mecklenburg County's Citizen Participation Coordinator at cedc@centralina.org.

5. Summary of public comments

Questions were received at the January 30, 2018 meeting from two area non-profits. These questions centered on determining project eligibility for the specific agencies. One of the area housing providers inquired about using CDBG funding to acquire property for substantial rehabilitation activities.

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them

All comment or views were accepted and responded to, to the satisfaction of the inquirer.

7. Summary

Mecklenburg County will continue to receive annual CDBG allocations to benefit the low- and moderate-income residents in the community. CDBG projects recommended for funding for the 2018 program year meet a priority, goal and objective identified in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan. Mecklenburg County will evaluate past performance and make adjustments in the future to better meet the needs of the community. Residents and providers will continue to be informed and invited to participate in the CDBG process to ensure projects satisfy community needs. Mecklenburg County will continue to affirmatively further fair housing through the projects selected for funding, and address the impediments outlined in the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice.

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b)

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source.

Agency Role	Name	Department/Agency
Lead Agency	MECKLENBURG COUNTY	
CDBG Administrator	MECKLENBURG COUNTY	County Manager's Office

Table 1 - Responsible Agencies

Narrative

The City of Charlotte, Neighborhood & Business Services Department is the lead agency charged with preparing the Five Year Consolidated Plan and reporting on federal program activities for the Charlotte-Mecklenburg HOME Consortium. Mecklenburg County is a member of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg HOME Consortium and is also an Entitlement recipient for Community Development Block Grant funds. As such, Mecklenburg County is the local CDBG Administrator for Mecklenburg County's annual CDBG Entitlement allocation. Mecklenburg County is charged with preparing the Annual Action Plans and Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER), which outlines the intended uses of CDBG funds and report on program metrics. The Annual Action Plans are developed in alignment with the Charlotte-Mecklenburg HOME Consortium's Five Year Consolidated Plan goals and objectives.

In this capacity, the County works in cooperation with other key government agencies, non-profit agencies and for-profit agencies addressing affordable housing, and other community development issues. Collaborative partnerships with key stakeholders are indispensable to the community's success in addressing the needs of low and moderate-income residents and improving the quality of life for all the residents by ensuring that all residents, regardless of race, gender, age, income level or disability, have equal access to affordable housing, jobs and services available in the County.

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information

Timmothy Tibbs, Assistant to the County Manager Mecklenburg County
Mecklenburg County Manger's Office
600 E. 4th Street, 11th Floor
Charlotte, NC 28202
(980) 314-2915 (o)/ (704) 336-5887 (f)

AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l)

1. Introduction

While preparing the 2018 AAP, Mecklenburg County staff consulted with the social service agencies, housing providers, neighborhood groups, and members of local governments. Informational meetings and public hearings were also used to develop the Annual Action Plan.

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction's activities to enhance coordination between public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and service agencies (91.215(I)).

Mecklenburg County works with the following agencies to enhance coordination:

- Charlotte/Mecklenburg and community partners- have joined together as a continuum of care to apply for federal funds and coordinate activities to meet the housing and service needs of individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
- Child Care Agencies provided funds to improve services to low and moderate-income persons.
- Housing Providers provided funds to rehabilitate and develop affordable housing and provide housing options for low and moderate-income households.
- Community Social Service Agencies- partnered and provided funding for facility repairs and accessibility modifications to allow for sustainability of public facilities for continued service delivery to those in need

The County during the Citizen Participation process asked local agencies and organizations to submit proposals for CDBG funds for eligible activities. These groups participated in the planning process by attending the public hearings, informational meetings, and completing survey forms.

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness.

Mecklenburg County is a part of the Charlotte/Mecklenburg Continuum of Care, together with other community partners they coordinate to identify resources to support activities that meet the housing and service needs of individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness.

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS

Charlotte is a recipient of ESG funds. These funds are utilized by the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Continuum of Care, of which Mecklenburg County is a partner. ESG funds are used to provide homeless persons with emergency shelter and essential support services. ESG funds also provided homelessness prevention and repaid re-housing activities which includes short and medium-term rental assistance to homeless individuals or individuals at imminent risk of becoming homeless. ESG funds will also be utilized to subsidize the cost of implementing the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS), in order to meet reporting requirements for the grant program.

2. Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and consultations

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated

1	Agency/Group/Organization	Our Towns Habitat for Humanity
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	The agency was consulted regarding the housing needs for North Mecklenburg County.
2	Agency/Group/Organization	Greater Matthews Habitat for Humanity, Inc.
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Housing
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This agency was consulted regarding the housing needs in Matthews.
3	Agency/Group/Organization	Town of Davidson
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - Local
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Non-Homeless Special Needs Market Analysis Economic Development
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This member government was consulted regarding the full spectrum of community development needs within their jurisdiction.

4	Agency/Group/Organization	Town of Huntersville	
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - Local	
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Market Analysis Economic Development	
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This member government was consulted regarding the full spectrum of community development needs within their jurisdiction.	
5	Agency/Group/Organization	Town of Cornelius	
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - Local	
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Non-Homeless Special Needs Market Analysis Economic Development	
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This member government was consulted regarding the full spectrum of community development needs within their jurisdiction.	
6	Agency/Group/Organization	Town of Pineville	
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - Local	
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Non-Homeless Special Needs Market Analysis Economic Development	

Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This member government was consulted regarding the full spectrum of community development needs within their jurisdiction.
Agency/Group/Organization	Mecklenburg County
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Other government - County
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Public Housing Needs Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless Homeless Needs - Families with children Homelessness Needs - Veterans Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth Homelessness Strategy Non-Homeless Special Needs HOPWA Strategy Market Analysis Economic Development Anti-poverty Strategy Lead-based Paint Strategy
Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This lead entity was consulted regarding the full spectrum of community development needs within their jurisdiction.
Agency/Group/Organization	Centralina Area Agency on Aging
Agency/Group/Organization Type	Services-Elderly Persons
What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Non-Homeless Special Needs

	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This agency was consulted regarding services provided and needed relating to the elderly population in Mecklenburg County.
9	Agency/Group/Organization	Centralina Council of Governments
	Agency/Group/Organization Type	Regional organization
	What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation?	Housing Need Assessment Market Analysis Economic Development
	Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or areas for improved coordination?	This agency was consulted regarding the housing needs assessment, market analysis and economic development, to provide data and analysis of current needs.

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting

All know agencies that were potential participants for the Mecklenburg County CDBG program were contacted during the planning process.

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan

Name of Plan	Lead Organization	How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the goals of each plan?
Continuum of Care	City of Charlotte	The goals of this plan are focused on providing increased opportunities for
		low income residents and aligns with efforts of the CoC.
Analysis of	City of Charlotte	The goals of this plan and aligned with the AI and strive to promote and
Impediments		create fair housing for Mecklenburg County residents.
FY2016-FY2020	City of Charlotte and Charlotte-	The Mecklenburg County Annual Action Plan is a component plan of this
Consolidated Plan	Mecklenburg Consortium	document and as such all subject matter is in alignment.

Table 3 - Other local / regional / federal planning efforts

AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c)

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting

Mecklenburg County recognizes that the preparation of the AAP requires discussion and consultation with many diverse groups, organizations, and agencies. During the planning process for the CDBG AAP, the County encouraged citizen participation. Two public hearings and a public forum were held in order to gather public input and answer any questions the general public had regarding the process and community development needs. In the course of preparing this document, the County's consultants met with service providers, community groups, nonprofit agencies, faith-based agencies, and local member governments to discuss and gather input on the community development needs identified in the program area.

Key agencies and organizations included:

- Greater Matthews Habitat for Humanity
- Mecklenburg County- County Manager's Office
- Our Towns Habitat for Humanity
- Davidson Cornelius Child Development Center
- Ada Jenkins Center
- Town of Cornelius
- Town of Davidson
- Town of Huntersville
- Town of Matthews
- Town of Pineville

Citizen Participation Outreach

	Mode of Outreach	Target of Outreach	Summary of responses/ attendance	Summary of comments	Summary of comments not accepted and reasons	URL (If applicable)
1	. Newspaper Ad	Non-targeted/broad community	Notice was published in the Charlotte Observer on December 24, 2017 notifying the public of upcoming citizen engagement meetings and a public hearing to learn about the annual action plan process and funding availability and eligibility.	N/A	N/A	
2	Public Hearing	Non- targeted/broad community	On January 10, 2018 Mecklenburg County held a public hearing to discuss funding availability and applicant eligibility.	All comments or questions were related to project eligibility and the application process.	All comments were accepted, and responses provided to the satisfaction of the individual.	

3	Public Meeting	Non- targeted/broad community	On January 30, 2018 Mecklenburg County held a public forum to discuss funding availability and applicant eligibility. Several area non-profit agencies and local government representatives were in attendance.	All comments or questions were related to project eligibility and the application process.	All comments were accepted, and responses provided to the satisfaction of the individual.	
4	Newspaper Ad	Non- targeted/broad community	Newspaper notice was published in the Charlotte Observer on March 29, notifying the public of the 30-day comment period for the drat 2018AAP and upcoming public hearing, seeking the community's input on the draft plan.	N/A	N/A	

5.	Public Hearing	Non- targeted/broad community	On April 18,2018 Mecklenburg County held a public hearing to receive comments on the draft 2018AAP.	No comments	N/A	
6	Internet Outreach	Non- targeted/broad community	On January 5 notice was posted on the Mecklenburg County website notifying the public of the upcoming public hearing and public meeting for the 2018 AAP			https://www.mecknc.gov/news/P ages/Community-Development- Block-Grant-Citizen-Meetings-and- Notice-of-Funding- Availability.aspx

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach

Expected Resources

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2)

Introduction

CDBG funds can be used for a wide range of activities, including housing rehabilitation, economic development, public improvements and social services, but use of funds is restricted to geographic locations with include the unincorporated areas of Mecklenburg County and the jurisdictions of Cornelius, Davidson, Huntersville, Matthews, and Pineville. Anticipated resources have been determined through consultation with participating jurisdictions and area nonprofit organizations serving the program area. Projects listed in this plan outline the uses only for the 2018 program year's allocation. Additional funding for the remainder of the five-year planning period is still subject to project approval and confirmation of matching funds.

Anticipated Resources

Program	Source	Uses of Funds	Expected Amount Available Year 1			ar 1	Expected	Narrative Description
	of Funds		Annual Allocation: \$	Program Income: \$	Prior Year Resources: \$	Total: \$	Amount Available Remainder of Con Plan \$	
CDBG	public - federal	Acquisition Admin and Planning Economic Development Housing Public Improvements Public Services	808,974	0	288,800	1,097,774	800,000	CDBG funds will be used in conjunction with local match monies provide by participating member jurisdictions and nonprofit organizations. These funds will contribute to achieving the goals set forth in the five-year consolidated plan.

Other	private	Public Services	78,660	0	0	78,660	50,000	Davidson Cornelius Child Development Center will provide an additional \$78,660 to support additional scholarships for childcare tuition for LMI families.
Other	public - local	Other- Environmental Review	6,000	0	0	6,000	0	The Town of Davidson has two projects funded for the current program year and will provide project funding in the amount of \$6,000 to cover the cost of the environmental review for both projects.
Other	Private	Other- Environmental Review	5,000	0	0	5000		Greater Matthews Habitat for Humanity will provide funding to cover the cost of completing the required environmental review.
Other	Private	Other- Environmental Review	1,000	0	0	1000	0	Our Towns Habitat for Humanity will provide funding to cover the cost of completing the required environmental review.

Table 5 - Expected Resources - Priority Table

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied

Unlike some other federal grant programs, CDBG regulations do not require matching funds on behalf of the Grantee. While there are no federal match requirements for CDBG funds, Mecklenburg County highly recommends that organizations provide matching funds. Match funding sources include contributions derived from other eligible federal and nonfederal sources and the value of third party in-kind contributions, (i.e. volunteers, personnel, office space, materials, equipment and supplies). However, while matching funds are not required; applications will

receive favorable scoring based on the ability to leverage additional funding sources for projects.

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan

Not applicable.

Discussion

The County will use CDBG funds in partnership with subrecipients to leverage private and local funds to address the goals and strategies outlined in the Consolidated Plan. Grants to subrecipients for public services are anticipated to leverage other funding sources.

Annual Goals and Objectives

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e)

Goals Summary Information

Sort Order	Goal Name	Start Year	End Year	Category	Geographic Area	Needs Addressed	Funding	Goal Outcome Indicator
1	Encourage economic	2015	2019	Homeless	Mecklenburg	Public Services	CDBG:	Public service
	mobility for			Non-Homeless	County CDBG		\$108,000	activities other
	residents/neighborhood			Special Needs	Program Area		Davidson	than
				Non-Housing			Cornelius Child	Low/Moderate
				Community			Development	Income Housing
				Development			Center:	Benefit: 108
							\$78,660	Persons Assisted
2	Improve livability and	2015	2019	Non-Housing	Mecklenburg	Public Facilities	CDBG:	Public Facility or
	safety of neighborhoods			Community	County CDBG	and	\$275,550	Infrastructure
				Development	Program Area	Infrastructure	Town of	Activities other
						Improvements	Davidson:	than
							\$6,000	Low/Moderate
								Income Housing
								Benefit: 100
								Persons Assisted
3	Retain affordable housing	2015	2019	Affordable	Mecklenburg	Rehabilitation	CDBG:	Homeowner
	stock			Housing	County CDBG	of Existing	\$175,000	Housing Added: 1
					Program Area	Housing Stock	Greater	Household Housing
							Matthews	Unit
							Habitat for	Homeowner
							Humanity:	Housing

			\$5,000	Rehabilitated: 10
			Our Towns	Household Housing
			Habitat for	Unit
			Humanity:	
			\$21,000	

Table 6 – Goals Summary

Goal Descriptions

20	018 AAP Goals	
1	Goal Name	Encourage economic mobility for residents/neighborhood
	Goal Description	
2	Goal Name	Improve livability and safety of neighborhoods
	Goal Description	 Ensure residents have access to sanitary water and sewer services Ensure high level of quality of life with good access to local schools, shops, and parks Ensure that neighborhood shopping for basic needs is available
3	Goal Name	Retain affordable housing stock
	Goal Description	 Preserve and expand the supply of affordable housing Provide assistance to low income homeowners to rehabilitate and/or provide emergency repairs for their homes Expand supply of affordable housing

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d)

Introduction

This section lists and describes the projects Mecklenburg County will carry out utilizing CDBG funding in FY 2018-2019.

#	Project Name
1	FY19 DCCDC Childcare Tuition Scholarship Project
2	FY19 Roosevelt Wilson Park Improvements
3	FY19 N. Mecklenburg Scattered Site Rehabilitation Project
4	FY19 West Davidson Sidewalk Project
5	FY19 Housing Repair Program
6	FY19 Administration

Table 7 – Project Information

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs

Mecklenburg County has made allocations for the 2018 AAP based upon the priorities of the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, citizen and community input, qualified responses to Request for Proposals, and an analysis of prior years' budget and expenditures.

AP-38 Project Summary

Project Summary Information

1	Project Name	FY19 DCCDC Childcare Tuition Scholarship Project
	Target Area	Mecklenburg County CDBG Program Area
	Goals Supported	Encourage economic mobility for residents/neighborhood
	Needs Addressed	Public Services
	Funding	CDBG: \$120,000 Davidson Cornelius Child Development Center: \$78,660
	Description	Provide scholarships for needy families to cover up to 80% of the costs for childcare.
	Target Date	06/30/2019
	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	32 persons @ <30% AMI 32 persons @ 31-50% AMI 40 persons @ 51-80% AMI
	Location Description	The childcare center is located in North Mecklenburg, child care services are available to all Mecklenburg County residents.
	Planned Activities	Provide scholarships for children of low, very low and extremely low-income families based on Mecklenburg County HUD income categories/limits (sliding scale) in order to give families opportunities to access affordable early child education and care while they pursue employment, education, and training, thus expanding their economic opportunities.
2	Project Name	FY19 Roosevelt Wilson Park Improvements
	Target Area	
	Goals Supported	Improve livability and safety of neighborhoods
	Needs Addressed	Public Facilities and Infrastructure Improvements
	Funding	CDBG: \$155,000 Town of Davidson: \$3,000

	Description	Adding play features and replacement of a picnic shelter for the Roosevelt Wilson Park that serves a historically African-American LMI community.
	Target Date	6/30/2019
	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	This project qualifies via an area-wide income survey and estimated 100 LMI residents will benefit from the project.
	Location Description	420 Griffith Street, Davidson
	Planned Activities	Adding five active play features, including a gaga pit, a steel table tennis table, a four-square court, a series of fitness stations, and lawn games. Additionally, replacement of a dilapidated picnic shelter. The shelter would include memorials for Davidson historical African American leaders, pillars of our community, who were instrumental in providing parks and recreation programs and facilities to local youth.
3	Project Name	FY19 North Mecklenburg Scattered Site Rehabilitation Project
	Target Area	
	Goals Supported	Retain affordable housing stock
	Needs Addressed	Increase Affordable Housing Units
	Funding	CDBG: \$120,000 Our Towns Habitat for Humanity: \$21,000
	Description	Acquire an existing home in either Huntersville, Davidson, or Cornelius that is in need of rehabilitation, rehabilitate the homes, and sell it with an affordable mortgage to a low-income home buyer who qualifies for Habitat's program.
	Target Date	6/30/2019
	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from	One LMI household will benefit from this activity.

	the proposed activities	
	Location Description	North Mecklenburg.
	Planned Activities	Acquisition of a single-family residential structure and rehabilitation activities.
4	Project Name	FY19 West Davidson Sidewalk Project
	Target Area	
	Goals Supported	Improve livability and safety of neighborhoods
	Needs Addressed	Public Facilities and Infrastructure Improvements
	Funding	CDBG: \$120,750 Town of Davidson: \$3,000
	Description	The Town of Davidson has focused on improvements to its Westside neighborhood, for several years. Bounded by Jackson Street, Griffith Street, Westside Terrace, and Jetton Street, the Westside neighborhood is home to primarily low-income Davidson residents. Improvements made within the past years include street resurfacing, sidewalk installation, and storm water infrastructure maintenance. The town has also worked in partnership with the Davidson Housing Coalition to preserve existing and provide new affordable housing in the area, including donating town-owned land for new housing and providing sidewalks and infrastructure on the sites. To complete the sidewalk installation in that portion of the Westside neighborhood, the town proposes, through this West Davidson Sidewalk Project, to install 1200 feet of ADA-compliant sidewalk on publicly-owned right-of-way on Mock Road north of Houston Street and along Houston Street itself. These two streets connect to Roosevelt Wilson Park and will increase accessibility to the park and its facilities for the entire Westside neighborhood. Houston Street connects to Sloan Street, a primary transit route for the CATS Village Rider which provides transit service to Cornelius and Huntersville; a bus stop is less than half a block from the intersection of Houston and Sloan Streets. The area is also within two blocks of both downtown Davidson and the Sadler Square shopping center and movie theatre.
	Target Date	6/30/2019

	Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	This project will qualify via an area-wide income survey as area-wide benefit. It is estimated that 100 LMI residents will benefit from this activity.
	Location Description	The Westside neighborhood, Mock Road and Houston Street.
	Planned Activities	Install 1200 feet of ADA-compliant sidewalk on publicly-owned right-of- way on Mock Road north of Houston Street and along Houston Street itself.
5	Project Name	FY19 Housing Repair Program
	Target Area	
	Goals Supported	Retain affordable housing stock
	Needs Addressed	Rehabilitation of Existing Housing Stock
	Funding	CDBG: \$55,000 Greater Matthews Habitat for Humanity: \$5,000
	Description	Critical home repairs for LMI homeowners.
	Description Target Date	Critical home repairs for LMI homeowners. 6/30/2019
	·	
	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed	6/30/2019
	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	6/30/2019 Approximately 10 homeowners will benefit from this program.
6	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities Location Description	6/30/2019 Approximately 10 homeowners will benefit from this program. Homes will be located within the Town of Matthews.
6	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities Location Description Planned Activities	6/30/2019 Approximately 10 homeowners will benefit from this program. Homes will be located within the Town of Matthews. Critical home repairs addressing health and safety issues.
6	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities Location Description Planned Activities Project Name	6/30/2019 Approximately 10 homeowners will benefit from this program. Homes will be located within the Town of Matthews. Critical home repairs addressing health and safety issues. FY19 Administration
6	Target Date Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities Location Description Planned Activities Project Name Target Area	6/30/2019 Approximately 10 homeowners will benefit from this program. Homes will be located within the Town of Matthews. Critical home repairs addressing health and safety issues. FY19 Administration Mecklenburg County CDBG Program Area

Description	General program administration and planning.
Target Date	06/30/2019
Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities	N/A
Location Description	N/A
Planned Activities	General planning and administrative activities related to CDBG program implementation and administration.

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs:

Mecklenburg County has made allocations for the 2018 AAP based upon the priorities of the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, citizen and community input, qualified responses to Request for Proposals, and an analysis of prior years' budget and expenditures.

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f)

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority concentration) where assistance will be directed

Approximately 200,000 residents live in the CDBG program area which encompasses low income areas in unincorporated Mecklenburg County and low-income neighborhoods in Davidson, Cornelius, Huntersville, Matthews and Pineville.

Geographic Distribution

Target Area	Percentage of Funds
Mecklenburg County CDBG Program Area	100

Table 8 - Geographic Distribution

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically

With the historic high rate of growth in the program area and the fast-growing economy, affordability of housing is primary concern for the County. The rate of owner-occupied housing is above average in the CDBG program area. The CDBG program area has a higher portion of elderly and disabled people who live on fixed income and are unable to afford needed repairs / renovations to their houses to increase energy

efficiency (to save money) or make the dwellings more accessible (allowing the residents to remain in their homes) and sustainable.

Overall, there are 200,000 residents and approximately 62,948 households in the program area. Data for the Mecklenburg CDBG program area is derived from a subsample created by HUD using the 2009-13 American Community Survey Five Year Estimate.

Overall, the target area has:

- Income levels that are low/mod;
- An older population than the County as a whole;
- A higher percentage of minorities;
- Lower educational achievement;
- Average to slightly smaller households; and
- Higher than average homeownership rate.

Discussion

In order for an activity or project to be eligible for funding, it must qualify as meeting one of the three national objectives of the program:

- 1. Principally benefit (at least 51%) low and moderate-income persons;
- 2. Aid in the prevention of slums or blight; or
- 3. Meet community development needs having a particular urgency.

Priorities that guide the allocation of CDBG funds are derived from the following goals:

- To provide decent housing:
- To provide a suitable living environment; and
- To expand economic opportunities.

In addition to national objectives and performance measurements, the County must weigh and balance the input from different groups and assign funding priorities that best bridge the gaps in the County's service delivery system. The County received input through outreach efforts helping to prioritize funding for community facilities, community services, homeless facilities and services, economic development, and public improvements. In summary, projects are reviewed, and funding allocations are made based upon the above criteria, including the projects ability to reach and serve the areas and persons with the greatest need.

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing -91.420, 91.220(j)

Introduction

The primary objective of the County's CDBG program is to develop viable urban communities by providing decent, safe, and sanitary housing, and expanding economic opportunities principally for persons of low and moderate-income. The mission of meeting and addressing these community, social and economic development needs of low-income persons and their communities is of importance to the County. Unfortunately, there are barriers and challenges that hinder the development and implementation of important programs intended to serve those most in need.

Mecklenburg County utilizes the 2015 Charlotte-Mecklenburg Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and other local affordable housing plans to inform the strategies for ameliorating identified barriers.

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential investment

Over the five-year consolidated planning period the City of Charlotte, Mecklenburg County and housing partners will pursue the following actions to address barriers to affordable housing.

- Continue testing and enforcement activities and document the outcomes of enforcement actions
- Continue to educate housing consumers in fair housing rights
- Enhance testing and enforcement activities and document the outcomes of enforcement actions
- Conduct outreach and education to the public related to fair housing.
- Review additional criteria to assisted housing location and other investment decisions

Discussion

Mecklenburg County and CDBG partners are committed to promoting and provding housing choices for all area residents.

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k)

Introduction

Mecklenburg County continues to invest federal funds for the 2018 program year in projects and programs meeting the priority needs of the community. The priority needs include the need for rehabilitation affordable housing, an increase in affordable housing units, public facility improvements, and public services.

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs

Lack of funding for housing and supportive services is the greatest obstacle to addressing the unmet need of non-homeless and special needs populations. Neighborhood resistance to creating housing for certain special needs populations is a significant obstacle. Mecklenburg County will actively seek out public/private partnerships in an effort to close the funding gaps for affordable housing. As a part of the consolidated planning cycle for 2015-2019, Mecklenburg County will determine where underserved populations are located through results from the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing and through outreach to member governments. To reduce the number of obstacles keeping Mecklenburg County from meeting the needs of the underserved populations in the community and to help improve service delivery, the County will continue to work with organizations that could potentially serve the community to address gaps and create efficiencies.

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing

Over the next year, Mecklenburg County will focus affordable housing resources for non-homeless priority needs individuals and families. Mecklenburg County will provide CDBG funds to local non-profits to preserve existing housing stock for extremely low and very low income homeowners in the program area.

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards

Mecklenburg County will continue to implement the City of Charlotte's LeadSafe Charlotte Program. The County will further integrate lead safe work practices to all County rehabilitation programs, by providing information on training offered by the City of Charlotte for all contractors on the Housing bidder's lists regarding lead safe work practices and encourage Code Enforcement Officials to make referrals to LeadSafe Charlotte and enforce code requirements regarding the elimination of deteriorated paint.

LeadSafe Charlotte will also focus on increasing collaboration with the Mecklenburg County Health Department to do outreach and testing of children in vulnerable neighborhoods, including an increasing number of Hispanic/Latino children. The City prioritizes units enrolled in the lead program through direct referrals from the Mecklenburg County Health Department for children with elevated levels at 10 ug/l or

above.

In addition, the County will continue to: 1) promote the Lead Hazard Reduction Coalition, established by the City's LeadSafe Charlotte Program that brings various community leaders and interest groups together to pool resources and ideas; 2) further integrate lead-safe work practices in all County rehabilitation programs and provide lead remediation training to all contractors on the County's Housing Bidder's list; and 3) continue to encourage Code Enforcement officials to make referrals to LeadSafe Charlotte and enforce code requirements relating to the elimination of deteriorated paint.

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families

During Program Year 2018, the County plans several activities to reduce the number of poverty-level families:

- Provide childcare scholarships for working parents with incomes below 60% of area median income
- Provide funding for critical home repairs for owner occupied housing units
- Provide funding for the acquisition and rehabilitation to create new affordable housing units

Actions planned to develop institutional structure

The institutional structure for the delivery of CDBG programs and services to low and very-low income families and individuals in the Mecklenburg CDBG program area involves public, private and non-profit participation at the local and federal levels. Participating member governments for the CDBG program partner with the County to maintain a strong institutional structure for affordable housing needs and non-housing community development needs in the program area. These local government entities include the Towns of Cornelius, Davidson, Huntersville, Matthews and Pineville. Mecklenburg County also works closely with Charlotte Water to provide public infrastructure services (water/sewer) to underserved areas. Non-profits play a key role in promoting and finding permanent solutions to the housing crisis and increase access to services through collaboration and cooperation between service providers. Member agencies include non-profit developers, housing providers and supportive services; which includes Our Towns Habitat for Humanity, and Greater Matthews Habitat for Humanity, and Ada Jenkins. As the CDBG program matures, new partnerships with private and nonprofit agencies will be developed in order to further the reach of the program.

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies

Mecklenburg County will actively seek out public/private partnerships in an effort to close the funding gaps for affordable housing. Mecklenburg County leads and participated in several additional federally funded housing and support service programs carried out through the Charlotte-Mecklenburg HOME

Consortium for low income persons in the Charlotte-Mecklenburg region. The institutional structure for the delivery of housing and support services to low and very-low income families and individuals in Charlotte-Mecklenburg involves public, private and non-profit participation at the local, state and federal levels.

- Charlotte Housing Authority, which owns and manages conventional public housing, develops mixed-income housing, provides City-financed public housing and transitional housing, and administers the Section 8 program.
- 2. Mecklenburg County's Code Enforcement Department, enforces the County's housing, nuisance and zoning codes.
- 3. Charlotte-Mecklenburg Housing Partnership (CMHP), a non-profit housing developer, administers a bank loan pool for single and multi-family mortgage financing and develops and owns multi-family mortgage financing. CMHP also develops and owns multi-family housing, produces homes for sale to low-income families, provides support services for renters and homeowners and offers homeownership counseling. Habitat for Humanity and Builders of Hope are other non-profit developers of low-income housing working in the community.
- 4. The private sector, which includes private developers, rental property managers, the banking community, local businesses and others with resources and/or technical expertise to commit to affordable housing development and management.

Discussion

The County will continue to work with our identified local partners to expand existing opportunities and develop new programs that address the needs of our low- to moderate-income residents.

Program Specific Requirements

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(I)(1,2,4)

Introduction

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried out.

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(1)

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried out.

Total Program Income:	0
5. The amount of income from float-funded activities	0
been included in a prior statement or plan	0
4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not	
3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements	0
address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan.	0
2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to	
program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed	0
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next	

Other CDBG Requirements

1. The amount of urgent need activities

0

2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan.

100.00%

Discussion

Mecklenburg County has allocated \$161,794 for planning and administration for the CDBG Program, which is at the 20% of administrative cap. The County has allocated \$120,000 to public service activities that serve LMI persons and families; which is at the 15% public service cap. The remaining funds (\$527,180) have been allocated for housing and public facilities and infrastructure improvement projects that will also directly benefit LMI citizens.

Mecklenburg County 2018 Annual Action Plan